Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Bonatrans India Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bonatrans India Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive loss (comprising
of loss and other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4. We draw your attention to note 35 of the financial statements regarding non-settlement of foreign currency
payables aggregating to INR 5,811 Lakhs as at March 31, 2024, which are due for more than six months from
the date of imports (including INR 167 Lakhs which are due for more than 3 years from the date of imports),
which is beyond the time permitted under the Master Direction on Imports of Goods and Services vide FED
Master Direction No. 17/2016-17 dated January 01, 2016 (as amended), issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
The Company has made communication to the Authorised Dealer (AD) Bank and Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
through AD bank seeking approval for extension of payment. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Bonatrans India Private Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misslalemenl when it exisls. Misslalemenls can drise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Bonatrans India Private Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

13. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: » Chartered

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the -'.
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit, ' _ﬂ oF
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(b)

()

(d)

(e)

®

(g

(h)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the back-up of the books of account and other
books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on a daily basis on servers
physically located in India and the matters stated in paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) (“the Rules™)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 06, 2024, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 13(b) and 13(h)(vi).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A%

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 30 to the financial statements

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2024 under the applicable
law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024.

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 34(b)(ix) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the

- Company to or in any other persons or entities, including f(uvreign enlilies (“Intermediaries™),

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
note 34(b)(ix) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, the Company has used accounting software IFS for maintaining its books
of account. However, in the absence of adequate evidence of necessary controls and documentation
regarding whether audit trail feature is enabled for all relevant transactions, we are unable to
comment on the audit trail feature of the aforesaid software. Accordingly, the question of our
commenting on whether the audit trail had operated throughout the year or was tampered with, does
not arise.

14. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

15. The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 and the transition date opening
balance sheet as at April 1, 2022 included in these Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously
issued statutory financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were audited by
us, on which we expressed an unmodified opinion dated September 07, 2023 and September 12, 2022
respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences in accounting principles
adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

G nees R
_.-’-'-’-‘-_

Rakesh Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number: 134593
UDIN: 24134593BKFJCU1167
Place: Pune
Date: May 03, 2024
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Bonatrans India
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Bonatrans
India Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safegnarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Referred to in paragraph 13(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Bonatrans India
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regardlng prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

jra’;-e: ‘\-"9

J—————

Rakesh Khandelwal

Partner

Membership Number: 134593
UDIN: 24134593BKFJCU1167
Place: Pune

Date: May 03, 2024
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Referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Bonatrans India
Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

i

i.

iii.

iv.

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by
the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note
4(a) and 4(c) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change,
if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on (or) are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the
question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in
the financial statements does not arise.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
and accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise.

The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting
under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b),3ii)(c), (ii)(d), (iii}(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.
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Vi.

vii. (a)

(b)

Viii.

ix. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

x. (a)

(b)

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We
have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of goods and services tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance
income tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. Also, refer note 30 to the financial statements regarding management’s
assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund.

There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

As the Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(¢) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
raised funds on short-term basis. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xi. (a)

(b)

()

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv,

xvi. (a)

(b)

()

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12)
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us by
the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, with the acquisition of majority
shareholding in the Company by Jupiter Wagons Limited (a listed public Company), the
Company is deemed to be a public Company as per the proviso to section 2(71) of the Act with
effect from March 20, 2024. As stated in Note 11 (a)(iii) to the financial statements, the Company
is in the process of constituting an Audit Committee as per the provisions of Section 177 of the
Act and will be obtaining approval of the audit committee for the related party transactions in the
first meeting of the audit committee.

In our opinion and based on our examination, though the Company is required to have an
internal audit system under Section 138 of the Act read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, there is no internal audit system established for the year.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not
have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether
the information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii.  Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due (refer note 34 (a) of the financial
statements).

XX. The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Ry

Rakesh Khandelwal

Partner

Membership Number: 134593
UDIN: 24134593BKFJCU1167
Place: Pune

Date: May 03, 2024



Bonatrans India Private Limitod
Balance Sheet

(Al amounts are n Rupoes Lakis unless stated otbevase)

r o Not As at | As at As at
®S | March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 | April 1, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property. plant and eguipment 4(a) 8273 8,990 2 795
Right-of-use asset 4 {c) 281 285 288
Capital work-in-progress 4 (b} - . 3
Other intangible assats 5 24 23 Z
I nanciai assets
(a)Othet financial assels 9(dj 107 1788 &2
Dsferred tax assets 6 - J
Olher non-current assels 7 95 323 548
Total non-current assets 8,780 11,409 10,719
Current assels
Inventanes 8 7875 1,837 1.8839
Financial assets
{8} Trade receivables 9(a) 6,218 1,073 1,132
{b) Cash and cash equivalents 9ib) 289 558 1.235
(c) Bank balances other than (b) above 8(c) 2,213 1.793 1.203
{d) Other financial assets 9(d) 109 157 157
Current lax asset (Net) 10 45 36 22
Other current assets A 1487 875 434
Total current assets 18,036 6,329 6,053
TOTAL ASSETS 26,816 17,738 16,772
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11(a) 11.064 11,064 11.064
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 11(b) (255) 7496 1,861
Total equity 10,809 11,860 12,925
LIABILITIES
Current fiahilities
Financiz! habilities
(z)Trade payables 12(a)
- Total gutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 86 23 12
- Total out_standmg dues of creditors other than micro and 15.229 5421 3383
sm3ll @nterprses
(b) Other financiai liabilities 12(h} 7 25 78
Employee benefit obligations 13 4 4 6
ther current liabilives 14 617 405 368
Total current liabilities 16.007 5,878 3,847
Total liabilities 16.007 5.878 3.847
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 26,816 17,738 16,772




The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration Number, 012754N/N500016 Bonatrans India Private Limited
DarceshQ Vi AL\L‘/Q, B’Q

— 1 ®
Rakesh Khandelwal Vikash Lohia Pawan Kumar Agarwal
Partner Direclor Director
Membership Number: 134593 Place: Kolkata Place: Kalkata

Date: 03/05/2024 Date: 03/05/2024
arek Jaros r/

hief{Executive Officer
acq: Chh, Sambhajinagar

D4tef 03/05/2024 o,’:’}’)'-
N
2

Devdatta Vaidya Ruchira Sadawarte
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Pune Place: Chh. Sambhajinagar  Place: Chh. Sambhajinagar

pate: 03/65 /2024 Date: 03/05/2024 Date: 03/05/2024



Bonatrans Indla Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss
{All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

N Year onded Year ended
by March 31, 2024 Merch 31,2023
Income i
Revenue from operations 15 16,378 6.349
Olher income 16 255 120
Total income 18,633 6,469
Expenses
Cost of malerials consumed 17 15,849 4,633
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods 18 {2,483) (529)
|Employee benefits expense 19 097 795
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 1,050 807
Finance costs 21 328 42
Other axpanses 22 1,846 1827
Total exp 17,688 7545
Loss before tax (1,0585) {1,076)
Tax expense
- Current tax 22 - -
- Deferred tax 23 a -
Total tax expense - -
Loss for the year {1,055) (1.076)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
iferns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss,
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations- gain 4 "
Income-tax relating to the above - -
Other comprehensive income for the year 4 1"
Total comprehensive Income/(loss) for the vear _{1.051) {1,065)
Eamings per equity share of ¢ 10 edch
Basic/ Diluted eamings per share (In ) 31 10.85) {0.97)

The above Stalement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction wath the accompanying notes

In tarms of our reéport of even date
For Prce Waterhouse Charterad Accountants LLP
:Firm Regigtration Number: 012754N/N500018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

W{&L‘-’Q
/

Bomtran:'ldCa—ny’umted
Ny

Rakesh Khandeiwal Vikash Lohia Pawan Kumar Agarwal
Partner Director Director
Membership Number: 134583 Place: Kolkata Place: Kotkala
Date: 03/05/2024 Date: 03/05/2024
Marekllaros
[ o culive Officer

Place: Pune

oats: 03 [0S /R02 Y

P Chh. Sambhajinagar

Dald’03/05/2024
L]

Devdatta Valdya
Chief Finandial Officer

Place: Chh. Sambbajinagar

Date: 03/05/2024

v

Ruchira Sadawarte
Company Secretary

Place: Chh, Sambhajinagar

Date: 03/05/2024



Bonalrans India Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

(Al amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

A. Equity share capital

[ Notes Amount

11(a)
As at April 1, 2022 11,064
Changes in equity share capital =
As at March 31, 2023 11,064
Changes in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2024 11,064
B. Olher equity

Reserves and surplus
Notes Securities Retained Total
Premium eamings

11(b)
Balance as at April 01, 2023 12,835 (12,039) 796
Loss for the year - (1,055) {1,065)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of 2 4
tax) )
Total comprehensive loss for the year 12,835 {13,090) (255)
As at 31 March, 2024 12,835 {13,080) (255)

Reserves and surplus
Notes Securities Retalned Total
Premium eamings

11(b)
Bafance as at April 4, 2022 12,835 (10,974) 1,861
Loss for the year - (1,076) {1,076)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of 1 11
tax) )
Total comprehensive loss for the vear 12,835 {12,038) 796
As at 31 March, 2023 12,835 (12,039) 796

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

mfs‘\p
P

Rakesh Khandelwal

Partner
Membership Number: 134593

Piace: Pune

Date: O3 /05/2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Bonatrans India Prjvate Limited

\e
L)
\l \\
Vikash Lohla
Director
Place; Kolkala
Date: 03/05/2024

al’

Mardk Jpros
Chie cutive Officer
Place\Chh. Sambhajinagar
Date: 03/05/2024

°

Devdatta Vaidya

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Chh. Sambhajinagar
Date: 03/05/2024

b

Pawan Kumar Agarwal
Director

Place: Kolkata

Date: 03/05/2024

W

Ruchira Sadawarte
Company Secretary

Place. Chh. Sambhajinagar
Date: 03/05/2024



Bonatrans Indin Privaic Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

(A arments ate o Rupees Lanhs unigse stated glteiise)

J_ o T T T T T _S{E_rch 2024 31 Ma@?—_

f Cash flow (rom opcrating activities T N i T
108 Belore mooms tac (1,055} (1.076)
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amazriisalion expense 1050 o7
Interest income (221, (116)
Finance costs 329 42
Unrealised foreign exchange ioss 78 351
Gam on disposal of PPE {1

Nel imparment losses on financial assels 13 =
Changes in operating assets and liabilities :

(Increase)/decrease i frade recewvables {5 158) 59
(Increase)/decrease in Inventory (5 838) 32
increase/(decrease) in trade payables 9795 1.7¢1
{Increase)/decrease in other financia) assets 61 57
Increasel(decrease) in other financial liabiltics 4 (53)
(Increase)decrease in other assels {380) {205)
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefit obiigation = (2}
Inzrease/(decrezse) in current liabilities {107) {5)
Cash generated from/{used in) operations (1,430) 1,682
Income taxes paid (hel of refunds ed) {9 (14)
Net cash inflow/{outllow) from operating activities {1.439) 1,678
Cash flows from investing activities:

Paymenis for property plant and equipment and intangible assets (280) (119)
Proceeds from sale of praperty, plant and equipment 1 -
Investment in tixed deposits (532) {3 4G9)
Proceeds from maturity of fixed deposiis 1,793 1,203
Interest recewved on fixed deposits 205 56
Inlerest recewved on other deposits 3 3
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities F 1,180 {2,357)
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid on GST (10}

Nct cash outflow from financing activitics (10)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents - (269) (678)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 558 1.235
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 289 558

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the foliowing

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Balances with banks
- in current accounts

Deposils with original maturity of less than three months

Balance as per statement of cash Rows




In terms of our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse B Co. Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

goTeRRRet

Rakesh Khandslwal

Partner
Membership Number: 134593

Place: Pune

Date:. O3 /05 /Qoa'zl-f

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Bonatrans India Private Limited

Uy et

Vikash Lohia Pawan Kumar Agarwal
Directar Director

Place: Kolkata Piace: Kolkata

Date; 03/05/2024 Date: 03/05/2024

Chh. Sambhajinagar
103/0572024

Devdatta Vaidya Ruchira Sadawarte

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Chh, Sambhajinagar  Place: Chh. Sambhajinagar
Date: 03/05/2024 Deate: 03/05/2024




Bonatrans India Private limited
Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. General Information

Bonatrans India Private Limited (“the Company") is engaged in the business of manufacturing railway
wheels, axles and assembly of wheelsets. The Company has manufacturing plant in Aurangabad, Indja
and sells primarily in India and parts of Asia.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the directors on May 03, 2024

2. Basis of preparation and summary of material and other accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material and other accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

i

ii.

i

Compliance with Ind-AS

These financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to the year ended 31 March 2024 were prepared in accordance with
the Accounting Standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2021 (as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS for the
year ended March 31, 2024 with the transition date as April 1, 2022. Refer note number 33 for an
explanation of how the transition from accounting standard notified under the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 (as amended) (“Previous GAAP") to Ind AS has affected the
financial statements of the Company.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the financial
statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousands (as per the requirement of
Schedule Ill), unless otherwise stated.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for defined benefit
plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and as per terms of agreements wherever applicable which is period of
twelve months. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and
noncurrent liabilities.

New and amendments standards issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affair vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the Companies
(Indian accounting standards) Amendments Rule, 2023, which amended certain accounting
standards (see below), and are effective 1 April 2023:

a) Disclosure of accounting policies - amendments to Ind AS 1

b) Definition of accounting estimates - amendments to Ind AS 8
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Bonatrans India Private limited
Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

¢) Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction - amendment to
Ind AS 12

These other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of
classification.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognized in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods. Specifically, no changes
would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company's
accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment. .

2.2. Summary of material accounting policies

a) Property, plant, and equipment

All items of property, plant, and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the costs of the assets, net
of their residual value over their estimated useful lives

Assets Useful life as per
Schedule ll

'| Plant and Machinery 15 Years

| Furniture & Fixture 10 Years
Factory Building 30 Years
Tools I 5Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Vehicles 8 Years

| Electrical Installations 10 Years
Server and Networks 6 Years
Computer and Peripherals 3 Years

The useful lives for these assets are in line with the useful lives indicated under Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

Transition to Ind AS:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognized as at April 1, 2022 measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.
(Refer note number 33 for details)

See note (b) under 2.3 for remaining relevant accounting policies.




Bonatrans India Private limited
Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

b) Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Computer
software are amortized on straight line basis over a period of five years.

Transition to Ind AS:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
intangible assets recognized as at April 1, 2022, measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of the intangible assets. (Refer note number 37 for
details)

See note (c) under 2.3 for remaining relevant accounting policies.
¢) Revenue recognition
Revenue from Contracts with customers

e Sale of goods

The Company accounts for a contract with its customer when it has approval and commitment
from both parties, the rights of the parties are identified, payment terms are identified, the
contract has commercial substance and collectability of consideration is probable.

The supply of goods does not have the same pattern of transfer to the customer as it does not
meet the conditions of performance obligations satisfied over time. Hence, each product is a
distinct performance obligation.

The Company assesses for the timing of revenue recognition in case of each distinct
performance obligation. The Company first assesses whether the revenue can be recognized
over time as it performs if any of the following criteria is met:

(a) The customer simultaneously consumes the benefits as the Company performs, or

(b) The customer controls the work-in-progress, or

(c) The Company’s performance does not create an asset with alternative use to the Company
and the Company has right to payment for performance completed till date.

If none of the criteria above are met, the Company recognizes revenue at a point-in- time.

The contracts entered by the Company for sale of goods generally have a single performance
obligation and are recognized at a point-in-time. The point-in-time is determined when the
control of the goods is transferred which is generally determined based on when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the customer. Apart from this, the Company
also considers its present right to payment, the legal title to the goods, the physical
possession, and the customer acceptance in determining the point in time when control has
been transferred.

e Rendering of services
Revenue from sale of setvices Is recognized to the extent thal itis prubable thal e ecunontic
benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

o Sale of scrap
Revenue from sale of scrap is accounted for as and when sold.

Chartereqd 400
N AAC TSN %,

i ,c_r CHHATRAPAT! f]

\\‘-_r_ iu.mnn rmmﬂ ’.__‘);,
S
e 1

S



Bonatrans India Private limited
Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

d)

€)

o Export incentives
Export incentives are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the conditions and the incentive will be received.

« Financing component

The Company does not have any contracts where the period between transfer of promised
goods or services to the customer and the payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Company does not adjust any of transaction price for the time value of
money.

Contract balances

The Policy for contract balances i.e., trade receivables

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business and reflects Company’s unconditional right to consideration
(that is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognized
initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The
Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at the amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less loss allowance.

Government grants

Government grants related to assets can be presented in the balance sheet as deduction of
the grant in calculating the carrying amount of the asset. The grant is recognized in profit or
loss over the life of a depreciable asset as a reduced depreciation expense.

See note (d) under 2.3 for remaining relevant accounting policies.

Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work-in-progress and finished goods

Materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down below
cost if the finished goods in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or
above cost. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted
average cost basis.

See note (i) under 2.3 for remaining relevant accounting policies

2.3. Summary of other accounting policies

a)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the piirpnse of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, balances with banks, and other short-term deposits, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.




Bonatrans India Private limited
Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

b) Property, plant, and equipment

c)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Assets costing less than INR 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts.
These are included in profit or loss.

Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Computer
software are amortized on straight line basis over a period of five years.

An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control)
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Transition to Ind AS:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
intangible assets recognized as at April 1, 2022, measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of the intangible assets. (Refer note number 37 for
details)

d) Government grants

e)

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and
presented within other income. Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions.

Financial assets
i. Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

o Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
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Bonatrans india Private limite
Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

e Those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as elected.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

ii. Recognition

Financial assets are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

iii. Measurement

At initia! recognition, the Company measures z financial asset (excluding trade receivables
which do not contain a significant financing components) at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at 'fair value through profit or loss' are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest,

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its
debt instruments as follows:

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in profit or
loss and presented in Other Income. Impairment losses are presented as a separate line item
in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit
and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in other
gains/(losses).Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the
effective interest rate method, Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in statement of
profit and loss.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or
FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment
at_is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss
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Bonatrans India Private limited
Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income.

iv. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with
its assets carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note no. 26 details how the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and ‘contract assets only, the Company applies the simplified approach
required by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from the initial
recognition of the receivables.

v. Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognized only when:
o Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset.

e retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financia! asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company
has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the
financial asset, the asset continues to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in
the financial asset.

vi. Income recognition

Interest income from financial assets at amortized cost is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognized in the profit or loss as part of Other Income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit impaired. For
credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after the deduction of the loss allowance).

f) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are presented as
current liabilities uniess payment is not due wilhin 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.
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Bonatrans india Private limited
Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

g) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency, or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

h) Leases
As a lessee

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a
lease. The assessment is based on:

{1) whether the contract involves the use of a distinct identified asset,

(2) whether the Company obtains the right to substantially all the economic benefit from the
use of the asset throughout the period, and

(3) whether the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable
- variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

» amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in
the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, lessee's incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions. The Company primarily uses
incremental borrowing rate, which is based on the information available at the lease
commencement date, in determining the present value of the lease payments.

Right-of-use assets represent the right to use an underlying asset during the reasonably
certain lease term, and lease liabilities represent obligation to make lease payments arising
from the lease. The lease terms include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is
reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that option.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease liability is subsequently
remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrylng amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying anwunt
to reflect any reassessment or iease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance lease
payments.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant pericdic rate of interest on
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)

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

A right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability are not recorded for leases with an initial
term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and
low value leases, the Company recognizes lease payments as operating expense as incurred
over the lease term.

Inventories
Raw materials and stores, work-in-progress and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower cost
and net realizable value. The cost of raw materials comprises the cost of purchases. The cost
of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labor, and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. The cost of inventories also includes all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Foreign currency transactions
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

(i)  Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency
at the date of the transaction.

(iii) Subsequent Recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in a faoreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar vatuation
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when
the values were determined.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting
period. With respect to long-term foreign currency monetary items, the Company has adopted
the following policy:

oreign exchange difference on account of a depreciable asset, is adjusted in the cost of the
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k)

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Company measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-Financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less the cost of disposal and value in
use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuit
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wilt
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
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obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss
net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or is a present obligation that
arises from past event but is not recognized because either it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed
and not recognized.

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. Where the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is
recognized and measured as a provision.

n) Employee benefits
(i) Short term obligations

Liabiiities for salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date. The company recognizes the expected cost of short-term
employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or enchased beyond 12
months from the end of the year are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to
the financial statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as
current liabilities in the financial statement of assets and liabilities if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

(iii) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates following post-employment schemes:
e defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
e defined contribution plans such as provident fund.
Gratuity obligations
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a

lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death or termination of employment, of an
amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment.
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Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

o)

p)

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuaria
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

Provident fund

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per
local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions
are recognized as employee benefit expenses when they are incurred.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs as
per the requirements of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

Earnings per share
i. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
e dividing the profit or loss attributable to owners of the Company
e by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

ii. Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic
earnings per share to take into account

e the after-tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Note 3: Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, py
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Company's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial
slalements.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The costs, assets and liabilities of the defined benefit schemes operating by the company are
determined using methods relying on actuarial estimates and assumptions. Details of the key
assumptions and the sensitivity of the net assets/liability position to changes in those key
assumptions are set out in note no. 24. The Company takes advice from independent actuaries
relating tc the appropriateness of the assumptions. Changes in the assumptions used may have a
significant effect on the statement of profit and loss and the balance sheet for the periods under
review.
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{All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4 (b) Capital work-in-progress

() Aging of CWIP

Amounts in capital work-in-progress for

As st April 1, 2022 Less than 1 More than 3
year 1-2 years 2-3 years years

Total

(a) Projects in progress 3 s = = 3
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - N = = -

The Company does not have any CWIP project whose completion Is overdue or whose cost has exceeded in
comparison to its original ptan

4 {c) Leases

This note provides Information for leases where the Company is a lessee The Company has acquired a piece of land on
a lease for 95 years.

() The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating tc leases:

As at = a‘::h“a . As at
’
March 31, 2024 2023 April 1, 2022
Right-of-use asset
Leasehold Land 281 285 288
Total 281 285 288
{i) Amounts recognized in the statemant of profit and loss:
s at ot | asat
March 31, 2024 2023 April 1, 2022
Dapreciation
Leasehold Land 3 3 3
Total 3 3 3
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Notes forming part of the financial statoments for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Intangible assets

Yearen March 31, 2024;

_The balances comprises t

Computer
Software
1. Gross carrying smount
Bafance as et March 31, 2023 24
Additions 8
Balsnce as at March 31, 2024 30
i, Accumuiated depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1
Charge for the year 5
Balance as at March 31, 2024 []
Neét carrying smount s at March 31, 2024 24
ar 023:
Computer
Software
1. Gross carrying amount
Deomed cost as at 1 April 2022 2
Additions 2
Bal as at March 341, 2023 24
u. ry '] d A P Ta#l
Charge for the year 1
Balance ss at March 31, 2023 1
Mot carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 23

Deferred tax assots

porary differences attributable to :

As at As at As st
L.aﬂ_:h 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 April 1. 2022
Dsferred tax Habilities ‘

-Propeily, plant and equipmant and inlangible assats 1,041 1.130 1,188

-Right of use assets" 3 T4 75
Deferred tax assot ]

-Unabsorbed depraciation 1.114 1,204 1,284
Deferrad tax assets {net) - = =
Deferred tax aasels have been racognisad only to the extent of deferred {ax Nabilities.

Unrecognizsed deferred tax assets
As at As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 Aol 1. 2022
Unabeorbed depraciation 1,625 1,352 1116
Tax josses 1 1.380 1338
1.626 2732 2,454
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Bonatrans India Private Limited

Notas forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless staled otherwise)

Tax losses carmed forward
As at Asat As al
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Exprre’ 5 5,308 5,148
Never expre 10,534 9.833 9.152
Total 10,538 15,141 14,300
The expiry dates are as follows:
Asat As at Asat
March 31 2024 | March 34, 2073 April 4, 022
202425 - 1,420 1,429
2025-26 . 1,780 1,780
2026-27 - 1,842 1,842
2028-29 - a7 87
2031-32 - 160 N
2032-33 5 - 5
Total 5 5,308 5,148

“The Company will not be able 1o carry forward its brought forward osses from previous year as per the Section 79 of
Incomo Tax At 1061 duo to change in awnorship of the Company (refer note 11(a)iii))

7 Other asgets
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Non-current
Prepaid gratuily {refer nole 248) 10 7 1
Balance with governmant authorities - 231 482
Deposits with customs authorities 27 27 F4)
Other advances® 58 £8 58
Total 95 323 548
Current
Advances to suppliers 138 516 38
Advances lo employees - - 5
Prepaymeants 42 44 R
Balanoe with government authorities 1.307 316 359
Total 1.487 [143 434
Tolal other assats 1,582 1,198 982
*Other advances periain to the subsistance allowance paid (o erstwhile employess
8 inventories
As st As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 | Apri 1, 2022
Raw materials 4,030 737 1,280
Work-in-progress 2.749 733 354
Finished goods 740 273 123
Stores and spares 156 94 102
Total 7.675 1,837 1,869
The abave inventeres indude goods-in-transit as follows:
As at As xt As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Raw materials 1,910 18 -
Finished goods 237 177 39
Total 2,147 195 33

Amount recognisad in profit or loss

Wmu-da-vms of inventories to nel realisable value amounted to Rs. 131 Lakhs {31 March 2023: 43 Lakhs) These were

n respe-:tlve year and Included in ‘changes in inventories of work-in-progress and
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amaounts are in Rupees Lakhs, uniess statad olherwise)

9(a) Trade rocaivables

As at Ag at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022 |
Trade receivables from conlracts with cusiomers - bifled 2,245 1.179 1.224
Trade recoivables from contracts with customers- relsted parties 4002 N 1
{Refer note 29) |
Less: Loss allowance (119) (106) (105)1
Total 8218 1,073 1132 |
|Bresk-up of security details
Trarda moeivables considered good — unsecured 6,218 1,073 1,132
| rade recaivables - credil mpsired ff 119 1086 108
Total €.337 1,178 1,238
Less: Loss allowance (119) {106) (106)
Total 8,213 1,073 | 1,132

#Trade Recelvables - credit impaired comprises of partias where the Campany has initated legal proceedings for recovery
and provided for |oss gl
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Aging of trede recevables 5 5t March 31, 2024
Qutstanding for follawing pericds from due date of payments ]
Not Dus L::ﬂ“'::‘ "'x"‘ 12 yesrs 23y "w’ Touat
() Undisgued Trads bz Convdered good 3,108 3091 L] - - S s
{s) Droputed Trade receivabies - Crwdt impaired - - - . . 199 19
Tomn ERE 2,001 [0 - < T €307 |
Less. Loss aliowance - = < . - (1% {19y
Tous! 3108 3081 iE] - 5 - [FI1
Baing of rags receivables 39 3t March 33, 2023
Gutsianding fof follewing periods from dus dats of paymants
Woepue [lasetansis "“;‘:':‘ N t2yeen | 29years '”;.':':" Y e
in Trede reces - Considerad good 73 27 . . [ 3 1073
(%] Dispuied Trade receivables - Credst - - - - = 106 108
Total T93 m - - & 109 1,178
Less: Loss alowance - - - - - {109) {108)
Total 783 il - - 3 3 1.@
i lv
.2, ding for p paniods fram due cats of paymaents
NotDue | Liansund "“:_f.":'“ 12y | 23pan |MO0 I3 e
G Trwdn monivibies - pood 3% s 1 .3 7 - 142
(1) Drsputed Trade meceivables - Credd ampased = 108 108
[ Total 353 76 1 s "3 1238
Loss: Loss sowance . . s = (108) - {108)
Tota) B3 3 i [ T = EREY




Bonatrans India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year endad March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

9{b) Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at As at
March 31,2024 | Warch 31, 2023 Aprll 1, 2022

Balances with banks
- in currant accounts 62 343 478
[Deposits with original maturity of less than three months* 227 215 758
Total 289 558 1,236
There are no repatriation restiictions with regard to cash and cash cquivalents as at the ond of the seporting period and prior
perlods.

9(c) Bank balances other than (b) above

Asat As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Deposits with origina malurity more than 3 monihs but less than .
12 months™ _ 428 278 1,203
Deposits with bank with maturity more than 12 moriths # 1,785 1515 -
Total 2,213 1,793 1.203

** As at March 31, 2024 fixed depostt of Rs.98 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 103 Lakhs) held as llen by bank against bank
guarantees and also as at March 31, 2024 fixed depasits of Rs. 300 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Nif) held as fien by bank for
project with Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited (BHEL) as Eames! Money Deposit (EMD).

# As at March 31, 2024 fixed deposit of Rs. 1,354 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 930 Lakhs) held as lien by bank against bank

guarantees and fixed deposils of Rs. 163 Lakhs (March 31, 2023; Rs. 155 Lakhs) held as security by bank for overdrait
facility.

8(d) Other financlal assets

As at As at As at

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 Aprl 1, 2022
Non-current
Security deposits 82 82 82
Deposits with bank with original maturity more than 12 months* 25 1.706 -
Total non-current financtal assets 107 1,788 82
Currant
Eamest money deposits 26 ‘87 144
Interest accrued 83 70 13
Total current financlal assats 109 157 187
Total financial assets 216 1.945 239

* As at March 31, 2024 fixed deposit of Rs. 25 Lakhs {March 31, 2023; Rs. 477 Lakhs) held as lien by bank against bank
guarantees.

10 Current tax assets (nat)

As at As at Asat
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Withholding tax 45 36 22
Total 45 36 22
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Bonatrans India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statemants for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

11 Equity share capital and other aquity

14(a) Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital
Number of shares
{(In Lakbs Amount
As at Apell 1, 2022 1,150 11,500
Change during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 1,150 11,500
Change during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 1,150 11,500
Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital
Number of shares
{in Lakhs) s
As at Aprit 1, 2022 1,106 11,064
Change during the year 4 =
As at March 31, 2023 1,108 11,064
Change during the year
As at March 31, 2024 1,106 11.064

{l) Rights, preferences and rastrictions attached to shares

“The Company has single class of equity shares having a par value of £ 10 per share. Each sharehoider is eligible for one
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual Genera! Meeting, except In case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
ligible ta recelve the remaining assets of the Company atter distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their

‘shareholding.

il Number of equity shares held by holding company or uttimate holding or its subsidiartes

As at As mt As Bt

March 31,2024 | ‘Warch 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Jupiter Wagons Limited (Holding Company w.e.f. 20 March 3
2020 , v ,, 1,043 = -
Bonatrans Group A.S., subsidiary of JCK Group P.L.C: (Haiding
Company up to 19 March 2024) 63 20 628
JCK Group P.L.C. (Ultimate holding Company up to 19 March . 480 480
2024)
Total 1.106 1,408 1,106
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year anded March 31, 2024
(Allamounls are in Rupees Lakhs, unless staled otherwise)

{iil) Detalls of shareholders helding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2024
Number of shares | % of holding
{In Lakhs)
Jupiter Wagons Limited* 1.043 94,25%
Bonatrans Group A.S , subsidiary of JCK Group P L.C 63 5.75%
Total 1,108 100.00%

*Jupiter Wagons Limited (public fisted company In India) has acquired 84.25% of shares (43.42% shares from JCK Group
P.L.C. and 50.83% shares from Bonatrans Group A.S.) of Bonatrans India Privale Limited ("BIPL” or "Company™) on March
20, 2024. Pursuant 1o this the Company shall be deemed to be a public company (being 8 subsidiary of a public company)
as per proviso to Section 2(71) of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from March 20, 2024. The Company has ensured
compliance with the provisions of the Companies act, 2013 as applicable to a public company with eflect from March 20,
2024, however is in the prooess of completing the appointment of Independent director, constituting an audit comittee,
constituting a nomination and remuneration comitlee, obtaining approval of the audi committee for the related party
transactions In the first meeting of the audit committee and appaintment of internal auditor.

As at March 31, 2023
Number of shares | % of holding
{in Lakhs)
Bonatrans Group A.S., subsidiary of JCK Group P.L:C. ‘626 58.56%
JCK Group P.L.C. 480 43.42%
Total 1,108 100.00%
As at Apil 1, 2022
Number of shares | % of holding
{in Lakhs)
Bonatrans Group A.S., subsidiary of JCK Group P.L.C, ;828 56.58%
JCK Group P.L.C. 480 4342%
Total 1106 100.00%

{iv) Detalls of shareholding of promoters

As at March 31, 2024
Number of % of total ho. of % of change
shares (In shares during the year
Lakhs)
Bonatrans Group A:S., subsidiary of JCK Group P.L.C. 63 5.75% 89.84%
Jupiter Wagons Limited® 1,043 94.25% 100.00%
Total 1,106 100.00%
As ot March 31, 2023
Number of % of total no. of |% of change
shares {In shares during the year
Lakhs)
Bonatrans Group A.S., subsidiary of JCK Group P.LC. 626 56 58% -
JCK Group P.L.C. 480 43.42% .
Total 1,106 100.00% -
Ag at April 1, 2022
Number of % of total no. of % of change
sharea {In shares during the year
Lakhn)
Banatrans Group A.S,, subsidiary of JCK Group P.L.C. 826 58.58% -
JCK 480 43.42% -
1,106 100.00% -
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Notes forming part of the financial stataments {or the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise}

11(b) Reserves and Surplus

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Retained eamings (13,090) {12,039) (10.874)
Securities premium 12,835 12,835 12,835
Total {255) 7986 1.861
() Securities premium
As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Opening balance 12,835 12,835
Movement during the year = -
|Closing balance 12,835 12,835
(i} Retalned eamings:
As at As at
‘March 31, 2024 | Maich 31, 2023
Opening balance {12,038) {10.974)
Loss for the year {1.055) {1,076)
ltems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained eamings
- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations, net a 11
of tax ’
Closing bslance {13,090} {12,039)

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Securities premium
Securities premium is used 1o record the premium on Issug of shares. The reserve Is utilised In accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

Retalned eamings
Retained eamings represents the accumulated profits / lossés made by the Company over the years.




Bonatrans India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

12(a) Trade payables

As at As at As at
March 31, | March 31, | April 1,
2024 2023 2022
Trade payables-Micre and small enterprises
(refer note 32) B6 » e
Trade payables-Others 15,229 237 114
zgade payahles to related parlies (refer note . b.184 3269
Total 15,315 5,444 3,395

Trade payable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding f:r follt:wlng par:ods from Total
duc dato of payman
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less Than — 23 ! More than 3
1 Year years years
Undisputed dues
{i)) MSME . BO 6 - - - 86
{if) Others 109 8.583 6,341 3 32 156| 15,223
Disputed duss
{i) MSME - - - - - - -
(i) Others - P - = - 6 6
Total 109 8,663 6,347 3 32 161 15,315
Trade payable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from
[E—— Unbliled Not Due due date of payment Total
Less Than 1-2 years 2-3 |More than 3|
1 Year years years
Undisputed dues
(i) MSME - 23 . - - - 23
(il) Others 115 1,623 2,606 841 139 1| £45
Disputed dues
(i) MSME - - - - - - -
(i) Others - - - - - 8 8
F’otal 115 1,646 2,886 841 139 7 5,444
Trade payable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for followin rlods from
e Unbilled | NotDue i pay"’h';f“ .
e Lass Than 1.2 yoars 2-3 lﬁor‘a than
1 Year vears | 3years
Undisputed dues
{i) MSME - 7 5 - - - 12
(ii) Others 38 183 2.996 157 3 3 3377
Disputed dues
() MSME - - - - - - -
{ii) Others - ~ - - - 6 6
Total 38 1680 3.001 157 - [} 3,395

. cumaean | <
SAMBHAINAGAR :
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Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs. unless stated otherwise)

12(b} Other financial liabllities

13

14

As al
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
April 1, 2022

Capital creditors

Payables 10 employees

Security deposit from customsrs
Other payables

43
18
10

1
14
10

5
15
10
48

Total

71

25

78 |

Employee benefit obligations

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
WMarch 31, 2023

As at
April 1,2022

Current
Provision for compensated absences (refer niole 24A)

Total

Other current liabllities

As at
March 31, 2024

As st
March 31, 2023

As at
April 1, 2022

Statutory dues
Payable to Government authority including interest®

38
579

31
a74

3B

Total

617

405

368

*During the financial year ended March 31, 2015, the Company imporied assets amounting to INR 3,880 Lakhs
under Export Promolion Capital Goods Scheme without paying any import duty amounting to INR 1,347 Lakhs due
to which the company has the export obligation of INR B,175 (Lakhs) which is required 1o be fulfilled within 6 years
(i.e between July 2021-Seplember 2021) of the date of export or extended time as granted by the authorities.

The remaining fulfilment is against 3 licenses for which the Company has oblained extension tifl March 2025.
Basis the management's assessment of the Company’s ability to fullfit its export obligation untill the revised
limeline, the Company expecls a shortfall In meeting those obligations and accordingly may be required lo pay the
customs duty benefit availed at the time of imports. The Gompany has provided for such expected shortfall.

Summary of liability recognised against the 3 unfutfilled licenses

Export Obligation
fulfitied tit| March
31, 2024

1Balam:e
obligation to
be fulfilled

Export Obligation
to be fulfilled

Custom Duty
saved on
unfulfilied
recognised as
addition to plant
and machinery

Interest on Duty
saved till March
31,2024

Total Liability

|recognised on

the unfuffilled
obligation

1.867 1,472

245

553
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Notes forming part of the finsncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

15 Revenue from operalions
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March M, 2023
Sale of products 15,950 5,996
Sale of services 12 15
Other operating revenue
Scrap salcs 4108 7
< Expart incentives 8 1
Tota! 16.378 6,349
{a) Timing of rsvenue recognition
Year ended Yaar ended
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Al a point in time 15.850 5,968
Qvar time 12 15
Total 15,962 4,011
{b} Reconciflation of revenue recognised with contract price ) )
There s na significant varalion between revenue recognisad in Statement of profit and loas snd contract price sxcept
-price variation daims, which ase considered to be part of contract price
16 Other income
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:
-.Deposits with banks 218 1713
- Deposits with others 3 3
Net gain on disposal of property, fdant and aquipment 1 -
Miscallaneous Income 33 4
Total 258 120
17 Costof materials consumed
Year ended Yeer ended
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Raw materials al the beginning of the.year 737 1,200
Add: Purchases 18,142 4,080
Less: Raw material at the end of the year 4,030 737
Cost of matariais consumed 16,848 4.833
18 Changes in inventories of work-n-propress and finished goods
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening batance
Work in progress 733 354
Finished goods 2 123
Total cpgning balance 1,006 477
Closing balance
Work in progress 2,740 733
Finished goods T40 273
Total ciosing baisnce 3.489 1,006
Total ges in i Hes of work-in-oroareas and finished acods 12,483)
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Notes forming par of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

19 Employee benefits expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries. wages and bonus 869 704
Contribution fo provident and other funds (refer note 24C) 38 22
Gratuity (refer note 24B) 11 12
Staff welfare expenses 79 47
Total 937 785
20 Deprecialion and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment {rafer note 4(aj] 1.04 803
Depreciation on right-of-use sasets [refer note 4(c)(i)] 3 3
Amortisation of intangible assets [refer note 5] 5 1
Total 1,050 807
21 Finance costs
Year snded Year onded
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Interest on: B
- Delayed payment of GST and Customs® 329 42
Totsl 329 42
* The above balance pertans o interes! paid on dalayed payment of GST Rs 10 Lakhs (PY 42 Lakhs} and Custom
duty of Rs. 319 Lakhs (PY Rs. Ni).
22 Other expanses
Yoar ended Yoar ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Power, Fuel and Water 181 128
Consumption of store and spare parts 387 167
WVages To C Work 181 T8
Repair and Maintenance
- Plant and Machinery 267 157
Trevelling and Conveyance Expenses 152 188
Legal and Professional Charges 97 118
Insuiranca 40 27
Payment to Auditors (refer note 22(a)) 32 20
Quality Cast 27 80
Advertising and Sales Promotion 20 ]
Information Technology Chatges 103 88
Security Expenses 88 81
Freight OLaward 120 141
Net impairment {osses on financial assets 13 -
Bank Charges 42 21
Losses on foreign exchange fluctuation 118 383
Miscellaneous Expanses 102 73
Total 1,046 1,697
22(a} Detaila of paymants to auditors
Year ended Yaar ended
March 31, 2024
As auditor:
Statutory audit fee 16 8
Tax audil fee L) 2
In other capacities
Group neporting ? 7
4 2
1 1
32 20

CHHATRAPATI | <=
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Bonatrans India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounis are in Rupees Lakhs, unless staled otherwise)

Incoms tax expense

The components of income tax expanse are:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

fncome tax expense
Currert incoma tax

Total current income tax

Deferred tax

Total deferred tax expense / (credit)

Total

Other comprehensive Income section

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 | Warch 31,2023 |

Deferred tax related to itams recopnised in OCI during the year

Reconclllation of income tax expanse &t statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported In statement

of comprahensive Income as follows:
; Year ended Year ended
il March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Loss before Income tax expense (1.055)| 1.076)
Applicable Tax Rate 26% 26%
Income tax expenses (274) (280)
Tox effect of adjustments to fle | tax expense to reported
income tax expense;

Iterns on which deferred tax assets is not recognised

Unabsorbed depreciation 182 177
Tax losses 1 42
Other temporary differences a1 ‘861

Income tax exp
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Notes forming pan of the flnancjal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Aft amounis are in Rupees Lakhs. unless staled olerwise)

24 Employee benefit obligati
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Lesve obligations (Refer Note A) 4 4 L}
Curment 4 4 ]
Gratulty (Refer Note B) 38 R M
Non-current 38 31 34
Current - - N
A Lsave obligations
The leave obligations cover the Company's iability for eamed leava. The significant assumplions were as fokows-
Parsticulars As al As at
March 31,2024 | Merch 31, 2023
|Discount rate 7.20% 7.30%
Satary growth rale 10.00% 10.00%
Atirition rate:
-Age uplo 30 years 20.00% 20.00%
-Age 3140 years 20.00% 20.00%
~-Age 41-50 years 20.00% 20.00%
-Age above S0 years 20.00% 20.00%
The estimates of fulure salary i tidered in adl fuation. lake account of inflation, seniodty,
promotion and othar relevant factors such as supply ; tnd demand in the amployment market
The entire amount of the provision of Re. 4 Lekhs (March 2023: 4 Lakhs) is p as current, since the Comp
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these oblgations. Howeves, based on past
experience, the Company does not expect all employees 10 avall the (ul amount of accrued leave or require payment
for such leave wilhin the next 12 monlhs.
B8 Gratulty

i ity for employ

The C

for g

as per the Paymeni of Graluity Act, 1972. Employees who are in

connnuou's service for & period of 5 years mre eligible for gratuity The amoun! of gmluity payabtie on
retirementiermination is the employees (ast drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary
muttiplied for the number of years of service The gratuily plan is a unfunded plan and the Company has not funded

the Eabiity as on March 31, 2024,

The ] d in bal shest and | in the net benafit obligation over the year'are s
foltows :
Frt;l'l‘;:'ﬂ:' of | Fair ::::' plan | patamount
1 April 2023 31 {38) ig]
Curent service cost 12 - 12
inlerest expense/lincome) 2 3} 1))
Total amount recogniaed {n Profit or Loss 14 3] 1"
Remensuremsnts
~ Demographic (gain)loss on plan Rabiiities - - -
~{Gain)loss from change in financial assumplions 3 - 3
- Experignoe (gain)Vloss on plan fablities m s 4]
- Retuwn on plan assats exduding amount included in R )
Inlerest expenses/(income) ®
Total t recog in Other Comp ) . (0]
Income
Employer conlributions/premiums paid - (@) 7)
|Benefit payments 3) - @)
|31 March 2024 38 {a8) (10)




Bonatrans India Privats Limited
Notes forming part of the linancial statemerta for the year eanded March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, uniess stated othenvise)

Presant valye of | Fair value of plan )
cbligation sseati pl Net amount
1 April 2022 34 (35) (U]
Current service cost 12 - 12
{income) 2 {2 -
Total ampunt recognised in Profit or Loss 14 2) 12
Remessurements
- Demographic (gainMoss on plan liabiktias {3 - 3)
- (Gain)oss from change in financial assumptions (4) e {4
- Experisnce (gasinMioss on pian ksbiities 4) L)}
- Re{um on plan assets exduding amount included in - =
inleres! expenses/(intome)
Total ¢ g d in Other Comprehanal nYy . {1
Income
Employer contributions/p paid e 1) M
Banelii payments ®) [} +
Modtalty cherges and laxes - - =
31 March 2023 31 {38} {7)
il Significant estimates
The significan! actusrial assumplions wora as lolows :
As st As at
e March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Discoun! rate 1.30% 7.20%
]Ssla!\r growth rate 10.00% 10.00%
Withdrawal rate:
-Age uplo 30 years 20,00% 20.00%|
-Age 3140 yoars 20.00% 20.00%
-Age 41-50 years 20.00% 20.00%|
-Ago above 50 yoars 20.00% 20.00%
Mortality rate:
-Age 21 IALM 0.000934| 1ALM 0.000034
-Age 22 ALM 0.000937( IALM 0.000937
Ago 23 tALM 0.000936| {ALM 0.000936
-Age 24 fALM 0.000933| {ALM 0.000933
-Age 26 tALM 0:000031| 1ALM 0.000031
v Sensitivity analysis
Tha sensitivity of defined obligation 1o changes in the weighted principal wtlong Is:

Impact on definad benefit obligation

Assumption Asat Asat
March 31,2034 | March 31, 2023

Discount rate

1% decrease 40| a3

1% increase 36 30
|Batary Incromant rate

1% decrease a7 30

1% Increase 40 33

Withtdrawal rate
1% docroase 38
1% increass 38
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Notes torming pant of the financial statemants for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless staled otherwise)

The above sensitivity analysis is basad on a change in assumption while holding ail other assumphons constan! In

praciice, this is unlkely to occur and changes in soma of the plions may ba lated YWhen calcuisling the
sensitivity of the defined benefil obkgation o significanl actuarial assumplions the same mathod [present vm of
defined benafil obigats laraled with the Projecied Unil Cradil Method at the end of the reporting period) has been
appled as when ing the defined benefit liabdity recognised in the balance sheel.
The method and types of ptions used in preparing the sensitivity snalysis did not change compared to the prior
pavind
I he loliowing payments are expected fulura benalil payments:
e Ak at As 3t As st
Rarculars March 31,2024 | March31.2023 | Aprit1, 2022
Betwoen 1 year 5 3 4
Belween 2 - S years 25 19 12
tweon 6 - 10 yoars 50 30 47
v The major cateqgories of plan assels are a5 follows:
As st As at As at
paruculan March 39, 202¢ | March31,2023 | Apri1, 2022
Pooled assats with an insurance comeary 100% 100% 100%

C Risk Exposure
Provision of & defined benefit sch poses Tertain risks, some of which are detalled heraunder.

1 Ulability riaks

1. 'h i =
Risk which arises If there is a mismalch in the duration of tha assets relative (o lhe Ksbililies By matching duration
with the defined benefil babiities, the company Is successfully able to luation swings d by interest
rale movaments.

h sin unt rEle rigk:
Varistions in the discount rate used (o compute the present value of the Esbikiles may seem smat, but in practice can
have a significant impact on the definad benafit Rabilities.

| incres inflation rigk:
Since price inflation and salery growth are linked icaly, they are bined for disck purp Rising
-salaries will often rasul n hngher future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present velup of Babilties
especialy d satary | provided 3\ mansgement'’s giscretion may fead o uncertaintes n estimating
1his Increasing risk,

2 Assetrisk

All plan assels are maintained in a rust fund managed by a public Secior insurer viz; LIC of India. LIC has a sovere:gn
guarantes and has beon providing consisient and compelitive retums over the yoars.

The Company has opted for & traditional fund wherain all assats ane lnvesied prunanly in fisk averse markeis, Ihe
eompanynasnocnnmommnmanagemm\o(nmdsmmmoplionpmvldnnhmnhwlufsdllyfnrlhetow
‘COTpUS. A single is maintainad for both the i t and claim seltlemen! end hence 100% Squidity is
ensured. Also intarest rate and inflation risk arm taken care of.

D Defined contribution plans
The Company also has certsin defined conlsibulion ptaas:

i} Contribution o provident fund
#) Employee siate insurance plan

‘Contributions are made Lo provident fund for eligitlo employees at spadified % of basic salary as per regulations. The
contributions are made to regisiored provident fund administered by the govemment,

During the year, the Company has recognised the following in the Slaternant of profit and
loss under *Conlribulion to pmndml and other funds®
Year gnded Year anded
March 31, 202¢ | March 31,2023
Provident fund 38 32
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, uniess slated otherwise)

26 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by categ
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Amortised Cast Amortised Cost Amortised Cost
[Financial aasets
Trade receivables 6.218 1,073 1,132
Cash and cash equivalents 289 558 1.236
hOlimrﬁank batances 2,213 1,793 1,203
Security deposits and Eamest
Money Deposils 108 169 226
Deposis with bank with original 2 1.706 .
maturity more than 12 months .
Dther 83 70 13
Total fi ial assets 8,936 5.369 3,810
Financisl liebil
Trade payables 15215 5444 3,395
Other 7 25 9
Total financlal lisbllities 15,386 5,469 3,473

Thers are no financial instruments that have been classified as Feir Vatue through Profil and loss (FVTPL) & Other Comprehensive income
(FVTOCH,

The camying amount of above mentioned financial assets and financial liabilitias recognisad in the finantial staternents approximate to théir
fair values due 1o their short term nature

Falr value of financial assets and Habllities msasured at smortised cost

The camying amounts of irade receivables, trade payabies, capital credilors. cash and cash equivalents, other bank balancss, other financis)
Asse{ and other financial liabilities (Other than spedfically disciosed) are considered to ba the same as their fsir values, dus {o their short
farm nature.

‘26 Financial risk menagement

This note explains the Company's exposure to finsncial risks and how these risks could affect tha Company's futura final P

The risk management policies aims o mitigate the following risks arising from the financial instruments:
« Credit rigk

- Liquidity risk

~Imerest rate risk

A Crodit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash squivalems, deposits with banks, securily deposits, s well as credt expasure lo outstanding
bl

i} Credht risk ménagement

Credit rigk is the risk of incurting a loss that may arise from a debtor faifing fo make required payments. Credit sk erises mainly from
outetanding receivadles, cash and cash equivalents and security deposits, For banks and olher financial institutions, only high rated banks/
financiat institutions are accapted. Hencs cash and cash aquivalents and fixed daposits with bank ane subject to low credit risk and the risk
of default is negligible or nil. Therefore, no provision has baen created for expectad credit loss for cradit rigk arising from these finandat
assols.

Ta manege the cradit risk arising from oulstanding ivable, the Comp iodically the financial reliability of customers,
taking info account the financial condion, ndymdhstmlulbadde&ammdmmunbbnﬁhmudhohngwom
The Company has not expenenced any | of defoult by #s customers in the past. Based on a review of the eredit profile of is

customers, pasi history of defaulis and other faciors as mentioned above, the Company believes that the credi risk is negligible an the trade
Teceivables, which are d and idered good. Expecied credit loss has been recognised on the credit impalrad trade recsivables,
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated olherwise)

(@) Impalerment of inancial assets

The Company has following types of financial assets that are subject to expected credit ioas mode!
- Traxte receivables

Reconciliation of loss alfowance provision

Amount

Loss allowance as on 1 April 2022 106
Changes in loss all ]
106

Loss allowance as on 31 March 2023
Changes in loss allowance 13
Loss ailowance 23 on 31 March 2024 119

B Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk managemeni implies meintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amouni of
commitied credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Dus to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the Company's treasury

meiniaina Rexibility in funding by maintaining ‘avalabifity undar-commitied credit ines,

Manag itors rolling f¢ of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash aquivalerts on the basis of expecied cash
flows

Maturities of financis! llabiiities

The Company's obligation to discharge if's financia! liabiities Hes within 12 months for year ending 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023, 1 April
2022. As balances due ara within 12 months, the impact of discounting Is not significant.

C Morket Risk

(1} Forelgn currency risk

Currency risk means the dek that Lhe fesult or economic situstion of The Company changes due to changes in exchange rates. The
Company is exposed fo foreign exchanga nisk adsing from foreign currancy transactions. primarily with respect to the EURO and USD .
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial Iransactions and recognised assels and linhiities denominaled In @ curency thet is not

the Company's functional currency (INR).

(a) Foreign currency risk axposure:
The C y's &xp to foreign y fisk at the end of reporting period in Rs. (Lakhs), are as follows
As at March 31, 2024

EUR INR usD INR
Financlat Liabilities:
Trade payables 7 6,961 73 6,124

As atMarch 31, 2023

EUR ANR
Financial Usbilities
Trade payables .58 5,185

AS 8t April 1, 2022
EUR INR

Financial assets
Trade recsivables 1 o4
Financlal Liabliities’
Trade paysbles ] 3,279
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AW amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

The gensitivity of profil o loss 1o changes in foreign exchange ratas with respect 1o year end payabie / receivable balances is as follows

Impact on profit
As st March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
I by 5%° _|Decrease by 5%° Increass by 5%° Decrease by 5%"
EUR (348) 348 (259) 258
usD {306) 306

27 Capltsl managemaent

Risk Management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

-saleguard their abllity fo continue s  going ¢ 30 that they can conlinue o provide retums for shareholdess and benefits for olher
'stakehoiders, and

~Mainsin an optimal capital structure to reduce ihecosl of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capita! struciure, the Company may relum capital to shareholders, Issue new shares or sell assels io
reduce debl The Company determines the amount of capiial required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term projects and
other strategic invest plans. The funding raqui ts are met through equity,
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28 Segmant Reporilng
{i) Primary Sagmant

The Company has only ong oparaing segment which i Menutaciunng of rBdway wheels (wheels AUeE and Assambily ol whesieets) On raviee of
31t redevant aspecis mcludmg i pariculsr mummmwmmmmnaIMMumww

Deciaon Maker (CODM) and consderng the of the (4 vs the Company tb Of the v that @ cperaies
m 2 snge primmy segmerl MENce N0 JEpIrANe MM UNder indun Accouning Sandaid 103 Opermtng Segments® is considersd
necerary.
Seronds ot = G #] Segment
Parcummn 31 Warzh 3024 31 Warch 1033
Within India | Outnide india Total Withen india | Ounnsde india Total
[Eogment ravenon by caion of cUGmErs 15712 250 [ 5014 ) (111
Al the s5s¢1s betonging ta the Company are KCated witivin ndka wxcapt ausets {i7ade recanvables) spgregating Rs Nit
4} Seconda = Top Cusiomers cont mam than 10% of the total revenis
Particulars 3% March 7004 321
Blore than Sore than
10% of total Others Toeat 10% of tota) Ottars Teba!
Tovernm revenue
(D I rEvenue Dy SUStomd 11285 4577 15,962 5238 753 8011
gment asssis by (Trade receivables) 409 212 6218 MY 130 1073

Figuras mpanad in the segments mantinned above cover all products manutactured By the Company and income &om senicas samed by Ihe
Company

20 Reisted Party Disclosures:
{a] Kames of celated panksy and natory of relationship:

1T} Where Conbrol axists:
Br.No Hame of Related Pa Nature of Relstions!
3 Foundaton ] any (upts ]
2 Bonasn AS fuptn oh s
: BIG 18! Limitec i PIT D S
L JCX Growp PL C )
5 vw o7 Limeed W‘pmnfm}
memmwmmy
8
(Managprg deciod (upto 19 March 2024) and
- [, M Jacos ! Execatvn Oficat (w 6 120 March 2024)
'y Chaitesje: Directar {w @ €20 March 2024)
k] Me Visth Leba H3uenal Dowcior L)
10 M P s Kirar | s Lrrgnitad (w8 ren JUZ4)

{H) Other related parties with whom transactions heve taken place dusing the ywar:

A Name of other Rewted Party Nature of Relétionéhip
P Gutshoffungshitie Radsalz |- gy, subaciary company (Upto 10 March 2024)
] Key Manageasl Parsonne] (Managing dyector upta 19 March
2 fr. Marek Jaros 2024 sre1 Chief Exscutive Offcer w 3.1 20 March 2024)
3 44 Devdata Vasaod Vaidya [ Kéy Mariagertar Persormiel (CFO)
ey P N smr2e | dtmard
Bhor e "
2 _— lw Narek Jaros (CEO) 198 %
STor lerm Mt. Devdatts Vassnl Vi
Emhguﬂ_c r,'c., FoL iy - 5

As grahuity and | for ad pate based on sctuanal vahuation caried oul lor the Comparny
25 2 whole, the smounts reletng fo the mwm:mhmm

Transaclions and Balances with Relrted Parthes

Trenaciiens Balancas
3 Y —— Focthe year | For the yaar P
Br, Nature of Tra ] 3
Mo Trandactions snded A As sl As gt As s
M-Marz4 A-Miar23 | J1Mer2d | 21-Mar33 0f.4nr37
1 Sals of Geods
£ Group A S~ FII q B 15
2 Wikgans Lmt H A 052
Bonatrans X 4:[ . £l =
Rarw Waisrial purchases 1
Bonatrans Group A S, 13125 351 - sorz | 319
4 Coal _l
Bonatraas G AS = - 54 1
5 Reimbarsement of aspenses
Bansirans AS 13 3 - []
Buishafmungshitle  Redsst:]
GmbH* 3

d 10 be relaled pacty froen Macch 20, 2024, scstrdngly Imnaaction during the year sre disciosed LS karch
Rlplance 25 &l year end has not been disciosed hers (Hafer note 11{@)n)
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30 Contingent Liabilities

3

Post directions from the Dispute Resolution Panel and final order from the Assessing officer, the Company has filed appeal with
the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) for the assessment year 2017-18 and 2018-19 respectively. The total upward
adjusiment of Rs.2086 Lakhs and Rs 1.617 Lakhs has been proposed for the mssessment year 2017-18 and 2018-19
respectively {o the value of intemational transaclions for both the years and income of the Company is to be increased by the
same amount. The Company is In the process of filing MAP (Mutual agreement procedure) Application before the Competent
Authority {CA’) and hence has filed an adjournment with the Tribunal with an objedtive to keep the matter in abeyance. Since
the outcome of the matter depends upon the subsequent events and further hearings before relevant authority for MAP, hence
the Company has considered the amount as contingent liability.

The Company has evaluated the impact of the Supreme Courl Judgment in case of “Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others vs
The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner ()l) West Bengar™ and the related circular (Circular No. C-1/1(33)2019/Vivekananda
Vidya Mandi/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Emplayees’ Provident Fund Organisalion in relation 1o non-exclusion of
certain allowances from the definfion of "basic wages” of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to
provident fund under the Employees’ Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act. 1952 In the assessment of the
managemenl, which is supported by intemal legal advice, the aforesaid matter is not kkely 10 have a significant impact and
accordingly. no provision has been made in these financial statements

Government of India's Code for Social Security 2020 (the ‘Code') received assent from the President in September 2020 and the
draft rules have been relpased by the Ministry of Labour and Employment on November 13, 2020. However, the date from when
the Code will become applicable and fhe Rules, have not yet been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code
and account for the same once the effective date and the rules are notified.

Capital Commitmonts (Net of Advances)
Capital Commitments as at March 31, 2024: Nil (March 31, 2023; Ni})

Earnings per share
As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
(a) Baslc earnings per share -
Profit atirbutable to the equity holders of the company used (1,055) {1.076)
in‘calcutating basic eamings per share
|Weighted average number of equity shares used a5 the 1,106 1,108
denominator in calculating basic eamnings per share
Basic Earnings per share {0.95) {0.97)

There &re no dilutive potential equity shares and therefore dillted EPS i3 same as basic EPS.




32 Dues to micro and small enterprises

The Company has certain dues 10 suppliers registered under Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

As at
March 31,
2024

As at
March 31,
2023

Principal amount due 1o suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at
year end®

Interest on above principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act. 2006 and
{remaining unpaid as at year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act. boyond the appointed day
during the year

Interest paid. other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registerad under the
MSMED Act, 2006 beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006 to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appainted day, during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act 2006

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year (not due)

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to small entesprises, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act.

85

62

23

85

**Below rounding off

“Includes Rs 9 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 Nil) with respect to payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment

The above information regarding micro and small enlerprises has been determined on the basis of information available with the
Company regarding the registration status of vendors as micro and small enterprises under MSMED Act.
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33 First-time adoption
Transition to Ind AS
These are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance wilh Ind AS

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 and in the
preparation of an opening ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2022 {the Company’s date of transition) In preparing its opening ind
AS balanca sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance
with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounling Standards) Rulge. 2021 (a5 amended) and other relevant
provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP), An explanation .of how the transition from previous GAAP 10 Ind AS has
affected lhe Company's financial posiion, fmancial performance and cash flows is et oul in the following tables and noles.

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed
Sot out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied i the transition from
Previous GAAP to Ind AS.

| Exemptions availed
2) Deamed cost

thd AS 101 permits @ first-lime adopter fo elect fo continue with the camrying value for all of fs property, plant and
equipment as racognised in the financial slatements as af the date of transition fo Ind AS, measured as per the pravious
GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition afier ‘making necessary Rdjustments for de-
‘commissioning fiabifities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 intangible Assels

Accordingly, the Company has elected fo maasure all of its property. plant and equipment and intangible assets at their
previous GAAP carrying value.

il Exceptions applied
a) Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with éstimates made
for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any ditference in sccounting policies),
unless there is oblective evidence that those eslimates were in efror,

Ind AS estimates as at 1 Apnil 2022 are consistent with the estimates as st the same date made In conformity with pravious
GAAP. The Company made estimates for following tems in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transilion as these were
‘not required under previous GAAP:

1) impairmient of financial assats based on axpecled credil lss model

b) Da-recognition of financlal assets and liakilitice

-Ind AS 101 requires a firsi-ime adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions
‘occuming on or afier the dale of lransition to Ind AS. Howevar, Ind AS 101 allows 2 first-time adopler to apply the de-
recogrition requirements In Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the enlity's choosing, provided that the information
needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and fingncial liabilities de-recognised as a result of past fransactions was
‘oblained at the time of initially accounting for thosa transactions. The Company has elécted to apply the derecognition
‘provisions of ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.

t) ClassHicatlon and measurement of financtal ascets

Ind AS 101 fequires an entity fo assess classification and measuremient of financial assets on the basis of the facts and
<ircumslances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

:Further, the standard permits measuremeni of financial assets acoounted at amortised ‘cost ‘based on facts and
tiftcumslances existing at the transition date if retrospectiva application Is impracticable.

Accordingly. the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist
on tha date of transition,

d) impalrment of financial assets

Ind-AS 101 requires an entity to assess and determine the impairment allowance on financial assets as per Ind-AS 109
using the reasanable and supportable information that is avalable without undue cost or Bifort to delermine the credit risk at
date that financial instruments which were initially recognised and compare that 1o the credit risk gt theteansilion
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B. Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2022

Notes to firet As at As at
sl time adoption | March31,2023 |  April4, 2022
Total Equity as per previous GAAP 11,860 12,825.00
ind-AS Adjusiments [ increase In { [Decrease in Ej
Total Ind-AS adjustments - -
Total Equity as per (nd-AS 11,860 12,925.00
Reconciliation of total comprehansive income for the year ended 31 March 2022
s g Notes to first Year ended
e time adoption | March 31, 2023
Loss under previous GAAP (1,085)
Ind AS adjustments [Incroase In profits | (decrease in profits)]
iil. |Remeasurements of post employment obligations 1 "
Total of adjustments 1
hNe! Profit afier tax as per Ind-AS (1,076)
Othar comprehensive income
i |Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 1 ha!
Total Other comprehensive income 1
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS (1,065}
Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year anded 31 March 2023
lPravlous GAAP| Adjustmants Ind AS
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,678 - 1,678
Net cash flows from investing activities (2,357) - {2.357)
Net casgh outfiows trom hinancing activibes. - - E
Net Increase/{decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (678) - {678)
Cash and cash equivalents es at 1 April 2022 1.236 1.236
Cash and cash equivalents gs at 31 March 2023 558 - 558

C. Notes to first-time adoption
1 Remaeasurements of poat-employment benefit obligations

Under Ind AS. remeasurements i.e, actusrial gains and losses are recognised in olher comprehensive income instead of profit or
loss. Under the pravious GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. As a result of this
change, the loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 increased by Rs. 11 Lakhs. There is no impact on the total equity as at 31

March 2023,
2 Othercomprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all iems of income and expenae recognised in a period should be inciuded in profit or loss for the period, unless a
standard requires or permits otherwise. ltems of income and expensa that are nol recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the
statement of profit and loss as ‘other comprehensive income' Includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans. The concept of

other comprehsnslve income did not exist under previous GAAP.
3 Deferred tax

Since it is not probable that taxable profit will be -available against which the unused tax losses or unused tex credils can be
utilised, the deferred tax asset has not been recognisad on Ind AS adjustments.
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34 Additional regutatory Inf quired by Schedule I
{a) Financial ratios
N A " Current  |Previous
Ratio Dent period period % Variance Reasons for varlance
Current rato Curentassets |Current liabilities 1.13 108 463%
Average
Retum on equiy ratio ;"" Profitatier | ey arahoiders {0.08) (0:09) 0.00%
ax . -
Equity
Trada roccivables Averagn Trade p
fu s ratio Total Sales Receivable 449 576 -22.05%
: . . |Decrease due ko increase n
r':‘:.'o‘""“" WMOVer |y ol Sales g‘:‘.ﬂf Working 8.07 14.08 42.68%|=sles and better working capital
- P imanagemeni
Increase due to Increase in
during the year and no
Net profit ratio 1':" Profafier |+ tai Saies (0.08) ©17 64 T1%|major increase in fixed costs
ot \which leads © improvement in
Net prafit mtio
Return on capital Capital
S ploged EBIT {Emes (0.10) {0.09) 11.11%
Trade payable . Average trade | .o |Increase due to increase in credit
wmover ratio Total purchase ]payabms L 032 100.00% purchases during the year
[nventory tumover Average .
fatio Total Sales invenory 344 34 0.29%)
* Explanabions to itams included in num and denomi for computing the above ratios:

EBIT is Eamings before intarest and tax
Waorking capital = Cutrent assets - current liablities
Capital emgloyed = Total Sharehalders' Funds

{b) Other reguiatory information

(i) Thie deeds of immovable propertles not held in nare of the company
The tide deeds of all the immovable properties {other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agresments are duly
executed in favour of the lesses), as diaclosed in note 4 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the comgany.

{i) Loans or advances (o specified person

Thers are no loans and advances in the nalure of loans granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the
Companias Att 2013,) either savarally or jointly with any other person, that are:

{a) repaysble on demand; or

{b) withaut spacifying any lerms or period af repayment

slated parties (a8 defined under

(iil) Detalls of benaml property held
No procesdings have been mibated on of are penting against ine Uompany tor h
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

propearty under the Benami |vansachons

{iv) Borrowing secured against current assets
Tha pany has no b ings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets

{v) Wiitful dsfaulter
Nane of the eniities in the company have been detlsred willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or gevemmaerit or any govemment

authority.

{vl) Relationship with struck off companies
The company has no fransactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 ot Companies Act, 1956,

(vii) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number. of layers preacnibed under. the Companies Act, 2013.

(vill} Compfis with approved schema(s) of sirangemants A
The company has not entered into any schame of amangement which has an accounting impact on current of previous financial year,

ChHATRAREN | S

\ b |
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(ix) Utillsation of borrowed funds and share premium .
The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign enlities (Intermediaries) with the

undersianding that the Inlermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities idenlified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate

Beneficlaries) or
b. provide any guaranlee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ullimale beneficiaries
The company has not received any fund from any persons or enlities, including foreign entilies (Funding Parly) with the undearslanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:
. direclly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ullimate beneficiaries

{x) Reglstration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companias )
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

{xi) Utliisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
There are na borrowings from banks and financial instilution.

{xI1i) Undlsclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,

1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

{xill) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has nol traded or invested in crypto cumency or virlwal currency during the current or previous year.

{xill) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property
The Company has not revalued ils properly, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current
of previous year.

35 According to Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and applicable guidance issued by the Resarve Bank of India (RBI)‘ realisation of
foreign currency receivables on account of export of goods / services cannot be delayed beyond the period of 9 months from the dale of éxport
and any payment on account of import of goods / services cannol be delayed beyond the period of 6 months from the date of Import unless
necessary intimation made/ approvals obtained from authorised desler/RBI.

As at March 31, 2024, the Company has foreign cumrancy trade payables amounting to INR 5,811 Lakhs [EUR 44 Lakhs and USD 23 Lakhs),
As at March 31, 2023 Rs. 1,277 Lakhs (EUR 14 Lakhs), outstanding for more than 6 months from the date of import {including INR 167 Lakhs
which are due for more than 3 years from the date of imports), The Company has applied to its authorised dealer (AD) bank and Reserve Bank
of india through AD bank for seeking permission for extension of time period for settlement of the above foreign currency payables balances.

36 Corporate Soclal Responslbility (CSR)
Itls to be noled that the Company does nat meet the criteria prescribed under section 135(1) of Companies Act 2013, and CSR expenditure is

not mandatory for the Company.
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